1991

Wendell E. Brumley, et al. v. Utah State Tax Commission, et al. : Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

Follow this and additional works at: https://digitalcommons.law.byu.edu/byu_sc1



Part of the [Law Commons](#)

Original Brief Submitted to the Utah Supreme Court; digitized by the Howard W. Hunter Law Library, J. Reuben Clark Law School, Brigham Young University, Provo, Utah; machine-generated OCR, may contain errors.

Jack C. Helgesen; Richard W. Jones; Lyon, Helgesen, Waterfall, Jones; Attorneys for Plaintiffs/Cross-Appellants.

R. Paul Van Dam; Attorney General; L.A. Dever; Brian L. Tarbet; John C. McCarrey; Attorneys for Appellants.

Recommended Citation

Brief of Appellant, *Brumley v. Utah State Tax Commission*, No. 910242.00 (Utah Supreme Court, 1991).
https://digitalcommons.law.byu.edu/byu_sc1/3554

This Brief of Appellant is brought to you for free and open access by BYU Law Digital Commons. It has been accepted for inclusion in Utah Supreme Court Briefs by an authorized administrator of BYU Law Digital Commons. Policies regarding these Utah briefs are available at http://digitalcommons.law.byu.edu/utah_court_briefs/policies.html. Please contact the Repository Manager at hunterlawlibrary@byu.edu with questions or feedback.

UTAH
D.C.N.
KFU
45.9
IS9
DOCKET NO.

UTAH SUPREME COURT

BRIEF

910242

IN THE UTAH SUPREME COURT

WENDELL E. BRUMLEY, et al.,)	
)	
Plaintiffs/Cross-Appellants,)	
)	Appeal No. 91-0242
vs.)	
)	
UTAH STATE TAX COMMISSION,)	Priority No. 11
et al.,)	
)	
Defendants/Appellants.)	

BRIEF OF DEFENDANTS

Interlocutory Appeal of Summary Judgment granted
Plaintiffs in the Tax Division of the Third Judicial District
Court, the Honorable David Young presiding.

JACK C. HELGESEN
RICHARD W. JONES
LYON HELGESEN WATERFALL & JONES
Attorneys for Plaintiffs/Cross-Appellants
4768 Harrison Boulevard
Ogden, Utah 84403

FILED

NOV 14 1991

CLERK SUPREME COURT
UTAH

R. PAUL VAN DAM #3312
Attorney General
L. A. DEVER #0875
BRIAN L. TARBET #3191
JOHN C. MCCARREY #5755
Assistant Attorneys General
Attorneys for Defendants/Appellants
36 South State Street, 11th Floor
Salt Lake City, Utah 84111

IN THE UTAH SUPREME COURT

WENDELL E. BRUMLEY, et al.,)	
)	
Plaintiffs/Cross-Appellants,)	
)	Appeal No. 91-0242
vs.)	
)	
UTAH STATE TAX COMMISSION,)	Priority No. 11
et al.,)	
)	
Defendants/Appellants.)	

BRIEF OF DEFENDANTS

Interlocutory Appeal of Summary Judgment granted
Plaintiffs in the Tax Division of the Third Judicial District
Court, the Honorable David Young presiding.

JACK C. HELGESEN
RICHARD W. JONES
LYON HELGESEN WATERFALL & JONES
Attorneys for Plaintiffs/Cross-Appellants
4768 Harrison Boulevard
Ogden, Utah 84403

R. PAUL VAN DAM #3312
Attorney General
L. A. DEVER #0875
BRIAN L. TARBET #3191
JOHN C. MCCARREY #5755
Assistant Attorneys General
Attorneys for Defendants/Appellants
36 South State Street, 11th Floor
Salt Lake City, Utah 84111

LIST OF PARTIES

Plaintiffs

1. Wendell E. Brumley
2. Utah National Association of Retired Federal Workers
3. American Federation of Government Employees, Local 1592
4. American Federation of Government Employees, Utah Counsel
5. Class Members Named (R. 81-4) and Unnamed

Defendants

1. Utah State Tax Commission
2. Clyde Nichols
3. Hal Hansen
4. Joe Pacheco
5. Roger Tew
6. Blaine Davis
7. State of Utah

TABLE OF CONTENTS

LIST OF PARTIES

TABLE OF AUTHORITIES	-vi-
JURISDICTION AND NATURE OF PROCEEDINGS	-1-
STATEMENT OF ISSUES	-1-
CONSTITUTIONAL PROVISIONS, STATUTES AND RULES	-4-
STATEMENT OF CASE	-5-
1. NATURE OF THE CASE	-5-
2. COURSE OF PROCEEDINGS	-5-
STATEMENT OF FACTS	-9-
SUMMARY OF ARGUMENTS	-13-
ARGUMENT	-19-
I. THE DISTRICT COURT'S CLASS DEFINITION IS OVERBROAD.	-19-
A. The Class Definition Is Overbroad Because Plaintiffs Have Admitted They Cannot Prevail Under Any Theory For The 1984 Year.	-20-
B. The District Court Erred In Including Within The Class The Tax Years 1985 Through 1987 Because There Is No Evidence In The Record Showing Payment Of Tax Under Protest For Those Years.	-20-
C. The District Court Erred In Not Barring All Plaintiff Class Claims For Years 1985-1987 Pursuant To The Statute Of Limitations.	-25-
D. Payment Under Protest And A Short Statute of Limitations for an Alleged Illegal Tax Meet Federal Due Process Requirements.	-27-
E. The Rule In <u>Davis</u> Does Not Apply To Federal Military Retirees; Hence, They Should Not Be Included In The Class.	-28-

II.	THE DISTRICT COURT ERRED IN DENYING THE DEFENDANTS' MOTION TO DISMISS AND IN GRANTING INJUNCTIVE RELIEF.	-30-
A.	Even If the District Court Had Jurisdiction, Plaintiffs Must First Exhaust Administrative Remedies.	-30-
B.	Even If the District Court had Jurisdiction, It Was Concurrent Jurisdiction. Hence, The Doctrine of Primary Jurisdiction Vests Jurisdiction in the Commission. . . .	-33-
C.	There Is No Basis For An Extraordinary Writ In This Case.	-36-
D.	Before The District Court Could Issue Declaratory Relief It Must Have Had Jurisdiction.	-36-
E.	The District Court Erred In Entering An Order Enjoining The Utah State Tax Commission From Proceeding Administratively In Adjudicating Petitions Filed By Individual Class Members	-37-
	1. The District Court Erred In Not Making Findings Or Conclusions Supporting Its Injunction Order.	-37-
	2. The Tax Injunction Act Bars The District Court From Enjoining Commission Proceedings.	-38-
III.	NEITHER STATE NOR FEDERAL LAW MANDATE REFUNDS. .	-39-
A.	Under a State Analysis, the Court Could Not Have Concluded the State's Taxing Scheme Was Illegal or Unconstitutional.	-40-
	1. State Law prior to <u>Davis</u>	-40-
	2. Laches and Waiver.	-44-
B.	Federal Analysis.	-47-
	1. Requirements of the Davis case.	-48-

2.	The Chevron Test for Determining Whether a Court Ruling Operates Prospectively Only	-49-
a.	Davis Operates Prospectively Only Under the Chevron Factors.	-49-
i.	Davis Unquestionably Established a New Principle of Law.	-49-
a)	The holding that the "pay or compensation for personal service as a officer or employee of the United States" applies to pension benefits received by previous employees was a new rule of law.	-52-
b)	The holding that the Section 111 immunity from discriminatory taxation is coextensive with the constitutional doctrine of intergovernmental tax immunity was a new rule of law.	-55-
c)	The holding that whether the state tax statute discriminates against federal retirees is determined by a "significant difference" standard was a new rule of law.	-57-
ii.	Prospective Only Application of Davis Will Not Retard the Operation of the Rule in Question.	-60-
iii.	Retroactive Application of the Davis Decision Would Result in Inequity, Injustice, and Hardship.	-62-
3.	Recent Decisions of the U.S. Supreme Court Support Prospective Only Application of Davis: The <u>ATA</u> and <u>Beam</u> Cases.	-65-

a.	The <u>American Trucking Association</u> Decision	-65-
i.	Application of <u>ATA</u> to this Case.	-68-
b.	The Beam Decision	-68-
i.	Introduction	-68-
ii.	Dissenting Opinion by Justice O'Connor, Joined by Chief Justice Rehnquist and Justice Kennedy; Concurring Opinions of Justices Blackmun, Marshall and Scalia.	-70-
iii.	Justice Souter's Opinion Announcing the Judgment of the Court, Joined by Justice Stevens.	-72-
iv.	Justice White's Opinion Concurring in the Result. . .	-74-
v.	Conclusion: The Meaning of Beam	-74-
vi.	Retroactivity of <u>Davis</u> under <u>Beam</u>	-75-
4.	The District Court Erred In Striking Defendants' Affidavits Which Are Relevant Under The Federal Analysis.	-78-
IV.	THE DISTRICT COURT'S REMEDY IS OVERBROAD AND OVERCLUSIVE.	-81-
A.	The <u>McKesson</u> Case - Minimum Due Process Requirements.	-81-
B.	The Remedy Below Was Draconian Under the McKesson Standard.	-84-
C.	The Utah Supreme Court Approach to Prospective Only Application of a New Decision Should Be Applied to Any Remedy Crafted By It.	-87-

V.	THE DISTRICT COURT ERRED IN NOT ALLOWING DEFENDANTS THE PRESCRIBED TIME TO OBJECT TO THE PROPOSED FINAL ORDER AND BY MAKING FINDINGS UNSUPPORTED BY THE RECORD.	-89-
VI.	THE DISTRICT COURT ERRED IN AWARDING PLAINTIFFS' ATTORNEY FEES WITHOUT A LEGAL BASIS FOR THE AWARD AND IN GRANTING COURT COSTS AND REIMBURSEMENT TO PLAINTIFFS FOR THE COSTS OF PREPARING AMENDED TAX RETURNS.	-92-
CONCLUSION	-95-

APPENDICES:

1. Order Certifying Class
2. Order on Defendant's Motion to Dismiss
3. Order on Plaintiff's Motion for Preliminary Injunction
4. Judge Young's Ruling
5. Findings, Conclusions, and Partial Summary Judgment
6. Davis v. Michigan Dept. of Treasury, 489 U.S. 803 (1989)
7. Determinative Law

TABLE OF AUTHORITIES

CASES CITED:

<u>American Coal Co. v. Sandstrom,</u> 689 P.2d 1 (Utah 1984)	-25-
<u>American Trucking Ass'n v. Scheiner,</u> 483 U.S. 266 (1987)	-65-
<u>American Trucking Ass'n v. Smith,</u> 110 S. Ct. 2323 (1990)	-16-, -65-
<u>Amica Mutual Insurance Co v. Schettler,</u> 768 P.2d 950 (Utah App. 1989)	-92, -93-
<u>Arrow Indus. v. Zions First National Bank,</u> 767 P.2d 935 (Utah 1988)	-2-, -3-
<u>Bacchus Imports, Ltd. v. Dias,</u> 468 U.S. 263 (1984)	-69-
<u>Black Bull Inc. v. Indus. Comm'n,</u> 547 P.2d 1334 (Utah 1976)	-25-
<u>Board of Educ. v. Salt Lake,</u> 659 P.2d 1030 (Utah 1981)	-88-
<u>Bohn v. Waddell,</u> 807 P.2d 1 (Ariz. Tax 1991)	-85-
<u>Cady v. Johnson,</u> 671 P.2d 149 (Utah 1983)	-94-
<u>Call v. West Jordan,</u> 727 P.2d 180 (Utah 1986)	-2-
<u>Canyon Country Store v. Bracey,</u> 781 P.2d 414 (Utah 1989)	-93-
<u>Carmichael v. Southern Coal Co.,</u> 301 U.S. 495 (1937)	-43-
<u>Chevron Oil Co. v. Huson,</u> 404 U.S. 97 (1971)	-15-, -47-
<u>Christensen v. Tax Comm'n,</u> 591 P.2d 445 (Utah 1979)	-41-

<u>Cipriano v. City of Houma,</u> 395 U.S. 702 (1969)	-80-
<u>Clark v. United States,</u> 691 F.2d 837 (7th Cir. 1982)	-42-, -53-
<u>Compensation Plans v. Norris,</u> 463 U.S. 1073 (1983)	-80-
<u>Costello v. United States,</u> 587 F. 2d 424 (9th Cir. 1978)	-29-
<u>D & L Supply v. Saurini,</u> 775 P.2d 420 (Utah 1989)	-3-
<u>Davis v. Michigan Dep't of Treasury,</u> 160 Mich App. 98, 408 N.W.2d 433 (Mich. 1987)	-11-
<u>Davis v. Michigan Dep't of Treasury,</u> 429 Mich 854, 412 N.W.2d 22 (Mich. 1987)	-11-
<u>Davis v. Michigan Dep't of Treasury,</u> 489 U.S. 803 (1989)	-5-, -11-, -14-
<u>Dimmitt v. City Court of Salt Lake City,</u> 444 P.2d 461 (Utah 1968)	-38-
<u>Estate of Friedman v. Pierce County,</u> 768 P.2d 462 (Wash. 1988)	-31-
<u>Frampton v. Wilson,</u> 605 P.2d 771 (Utah 1980)	-94-
<u>Graves v. New York ex rel. O'Keafe,</u> 306 U.S. 466 (1939)	-56-
<u>Hamblin v. City of Clearfield,</u> 795 P.2d 1133 (Utah 1990)	-3-
<u>Helvering v. Gerhardt,</u> 304 U.S. 405 (1938)	-56-
<u>Hoffa v. Hough,</u> 30 A.2d 761 (Md. 1943)	-46-
<u>James B. Beam Distilling Co. v. Georgia,</u> 111 S. Ct. 2439 (1991)	-69-, -81-, -87-

<u>James B. Beam Distilling Co. v. State,</u> 259 Ga. 363, 382 S.E.2d 95 (1989)	-69-
<u>John v. Ward,</u> 451 P.2d 182, (Okla. 1976)	-2-
<u>Johnson v. Retirement Bd.,</u> 621 P.2d 1234 (Utah 1980)	-35-
<u>Kizas v. Webster,</u> 707 F.2d 524 (D.C. Cir.), cert. denied, 464 U.S. 1042 (1984)	-52-
<u>Leaver v. Gross,</u> 610 P.2d 1262 (Utah 1980)	-44-
<u>Lehnhausen v. Lake Shore Auto Parts Co.,</u> 410 U.S. 356, (1973)	-43-
<u>Loyal Order of Moose No. 259 v. County Bd. of Equalization,</u> 657 P.2d 257, (Utah 1982)	-88-
<u>Malan v. Lewis,</u> 693 P.2d 661 (Utah 1984)	-88-
<u>Mammoth City v. Snow,</u> 253 P. 680 (Utah 1926)	-84-
<u>McCulloch v. Maryland,</u> 4 Wheat. 616, 4 L.Ed. 579 (1819)	-55-
<u>McKesson Corporation v. Division of Alcoholic Beverages and Tobacco,</u> 110 S. Ct. 2238 (1990)	-17-, -27-, -48-, -67-, -76-, -81-
<u>Ogden City Corp. v. Adam,</u> 635 P.2d 70 (Utah 1981)	-36-
<u>Orion Corp. v. State,</u> 103 Wash.2d 441, 697 P.2d 1369 (Wash. 1985)	-31-
<u>Packarski v. Smith,</u> 147 A.2d 176 (Del. Ch. 1958)	-46-
<u>Papanikolas Brothers Enter. v. Sugarhouse Shopping Center Assoc.,</u> 535 P.2d 1256 (Utah 1975)	-45-
<u>Ponderosa One Limited Partnership v. Suburban Sanitary Dist.,</u> 738 P.2d 635 (Utah 1987)	-26-

<u>Public Utilities Comm. v. U.S.,</u> 355 U.S. 534, 78 S.Ct. at 450	-35-
<u>Rio Algom Corp. v. San Juan County,</u> 681 P.2d 184 (Utah 1984)	-88-
<u>Schmidt v. Interstate Fed. Savings and Loan Ass'n,</u> 74 F.R.D. 423, (U.S.D.C., D.C. 1977)	-27-
<u>Shea v. Tax Comm'n,</u> 101 Utah 209, 120 P.2d 274 (Utah 1941)	-23-
<u>St. Benedict's Dev. Co. v. St. Benedict's Hospital,</u> 811 P.2d 194 (Utah 1991)	-2-
<u>State v. District Court,</u> 102 Utah 2d 57, 128 P.2d 471 (1942)	-23-
<u>State v. District Court,</u> 102 Utah 290, 115 P.2d 913 (Utah 1941)	-23-
<u>Systems Concepts, Inc. v. Dixon,</u> 669 P.2d 421 (Utah 1983)	-2-
<u>Taylor v. Estate of Taylor,</u> 770 P.2d 163 (Utah Ct. App. 1989)	-4-
<u>Teague v. Lane,</u> 109 S.Ct. 1060 (1989)	-50-
<u>Turtle Management, Inc. v. Haggis Management,</u> 645 P.2d 667 (Utah 1982)	-92-
<u>Union Pacific R.R. Co. v. Structural Steel & Forge Co.,</u> 344 P.2d 157 (Utah 1959)	-34-
<u>United States v. County of Fresno,</u> 429 U.S. 452 (1977)	-59-
<u>United States v. Tyler,</u> 105 U. S. 244 (1882)	-29-
<u>Ward v. Richfield City,</u> 798 P.2d 757 (Utah 1990)	-3-, -4-
<u>Watson v. Watson,</u> 424 F. Supp. 866 (E.D.N.C. 1976)	-29-

<u>Zucker v. United States</u> ,	
758 F.2d 637 (Fed. Cir. 1985)	-52-

RULES:

Utah Code Jud. Admin. R4-504(2)	-17-, -89-, -90
Utah R. Civ. P. 6(a)	-90-
Utha R. Civ. P. 52	-37-
Utah R. Civ. P. 54	-94-
Utah R. Civ. P. 56(c)	-92-

STATUTES CITED:

5 U.S.C. § 8331	-28-
4 U.S.C. § 111	-5-, -10-, -39-, -40-, -45-, -48-, -51-
10 U.S.C. § 688	-29-
10 U.S.C. § 802	-29-
10 U.S.C. § 1293	-29-
10 U.S.C. § 3911	-29-
10 U.S.C. § 6323	-29-
42 U.S.C. § 1983	-6-
Ga. Code Ann. § 3-4-60 (1982)	-69-
Utah Code Ann. § 49-1-608 (Supp. 1991)	-10-, -48-, -50-
Utah Code Ann. § 49-2-103(6) (1989 and Supp. 1990)	-28-
Utah Code Ann. § 59-1-301 (Supp. 1989) .	-14-, -21-, -24-, -85-
Utah Code Ann. §§ 59-1-501 through 505	-85-
Utah Code Ann. § 59-1-608 (1987)	-1-

Utah Code Ann. § 59-1-704 (1987)	-38-
Utah Code Ann. §§ 59-10-102, 59-10-501 to 548 (1987) . . .	-34-
Utah Code Ann. § 59-10-527 (1987)	-35-
Utah Code Ann. §§ 59-10-531 through 535 (1987)	-31-
Utah Code Ann. § 59-10-544 (1987)	-35-
Utah Code Ann. § 63-46b-14 (1989)	-6-
Utah Code Ann. § 63-46b-21 (1989)	-32-
Utah Code Ann. § 68-33-1 (1987)	-36-
Utah Code Ann. § 78-2-2(3)(j) (1990 Supp.)	-1-
Utah Code Ann. § 78-12-31 (1987)	-14-, -25-, -86-
Utah Code Ann. § 78-12-31(2) (1987)	-26-
Utah Code Ann. § 78-27-56 (1987)	-93-
Utah Code Ann. § 79-12-31 (1987)	-14-

OTHER AUTHORITIES CITED:

1947 Utah Laws Ch. 131, § 13	-50-
Utah Const. art. VIII §§ 4 and 5	-1-
Utah Const. art. XIII § 11	-34-

IN THE UTAH SUPREME COURT

WENDELL E. BRUMLEY, et al.,)	
)	
Plaintiffs/Cross-Appellants,)	
)	Appeal No. 91-0242
vs.)	
)	
UTAH STATE TAX COMMISSION,)	Priority No. 11
et al.,)	
)	
Defendants/Appellants.)	

BRIEF OF DEFENDANTS

JURISDICTION AND NATURE OF PROCEEDINGS

The Court has jurisdiction to hear this matter pursuant to Utah Code Ann. § 59-1-608 (1987), section 5 of Article VIII of the Utah Constitution, Utah Code Ann. § 78-2-2(3)(j) (1991 Supp.), and Rule 5 of the Utah Rules of Appellate Procedure.

STATEMENT OF ISSUES

ISSUE 1. The District Court erred in defining Plaintiff Class. The Class is overbroad to the extent that it includes persons receiving federal retirement benefits for the year 1984; it includes persons who failed to pay under protest for the years 1985 through 1987; it includes persons barred by the six month statute of limitation; and it includes military retirees who do not receive pension income.

Standard of Review: This Court will reverse a trial court decision on class certification "when it is shown

that the trial court misapplied the law or abused its discretion.

. . . " Call v. West Jordan, 727 P.2d 180, 183 (Utah 1986).

ISSUE 2. The District Court erred in denying Defendants' Motion to Dismiss because Plaintiffs failed to exhaust administrative remedies; It further erred in granting injunctive relief without findings of fact and conclusions of law and in violation of the Tax Injunction Act.

Standard of Review: Dismissal. The standard of review is correction of error. The ruling by a trial court on "the propriety of a 12(b)(6) dismissal is a question of law . . . the trial court's ruling [is given] no deference and [the court will] review it under a correctness standard." St. Benedict's Dev. Co. v. St. Benedict's Hospital, 811 P.2d 194 (Utah 1991). The reviewing court must construe the complaint in the light most favorable to the Plaintiff and resolve all inferences in its favor in reviewing the ruling on a motion to dismiss. Arrow Indus. v. Zions First National Bank, 767 P.2d 935, 936 (Utah 1988). Injunction. The reviewing Court reviews the District Court's decision in granting the injunction to determine if it has abused its discretion, or if its judgment is clearly against the weight of the evidence. See Systems Concepts, Inc. v. Dixon, 669 P.2d 421, 425 (Utah 1983) (citing John v. Ward, 451 P.2d 182, 188 (Okla. 1976)).

ISSUE 3. The District Court erred in granting Plaintiffs' Motion for Summary Judgment and ruling, without precedent, that State and Federal law mandate income tax refunds for all members of the class for the years 1985 through 1988.

Standard of Review: When reviewing a ruling on motion for summary judgment, the Court should determine "whether there is a genuine issue of material fact and, if there is not, whether the moving party is entitled to judgment as a matter of law. . . ." Arrow Indus. v. Zions First National Bank, 767 P.2d 935, 937 (Utah 1988). The reviewing Court should view the facts and inferences to be drawn therefrom in the light most favorable to the losing party. Hamblin v. City of Clearfield, 795 P.2d 1133 (Utah 1990).

ISSUE 4. The District Court erred in crafting a remedy that is overbroad and overinclusive.

Standard of Review: This is a question of law reviewed for correctness. Ward v. Richfield City, 798 P.2d 757, 759 (Utah 1990).

ISSUE 5. The District Court erred in not allowing Defendants the prescribed time to file objections to Plaintiffs' Amended Proposed Findings, Conclusions, and Partial Summary Judgment and by making findings when ruling on Plaintiffs' Motion for Summary Judgment that are unsupported by the record.

Standard of Review: Time for Objection. This is a question of law reviewed for correctness. Id. Findings. The reviewing court views the evidence in a "light most favorable to the losing party and affirms only where it appears there is no genuine dispute as to any material fact . . ." D & L Supply v. Saurini, 775 P.2d 420 (Utah 1989).

ISSUE 6. The District Court erred in awarding Plaintiffs attorney fees and reimbursement for tax return preparation.

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