1991

# Wendell E. Brumley, et al. v. Utah State Tax Commission, et al. : Brief of Appellee

Utah Supreme Court

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

Laws 1990, Ch. 21. (emphasis added).

**C. PROTESTS ARE NOT REQUIRED FOR REFUNDS OF INCOME TAX "OVERPAYMENTS".**

With its incorporation of federal tax law and procedure<sup>26</sup>, Utah has adopted a system which rejected a protest requirement for income taxes more than sixty years ago. In *Moore Ice Cream Co. v. Rose*, 289 U.S. 373 (1933), after the federal government repealed the law requiring payments under protest, litigation ensued regarding the date the law became effective. With reference to the protest requirement the U.S. Supreme Court said,

In this situation the Government was unjustly enriched at the expense of the taxpayer when it held onto monies that had been illegally collected, whether with protest or without. So at least the lawmakers believed, and gave expression to that belief, not only in the statute, but in Congressional reports. Senate Report, No. 398, 68th Congress, First Session, pp. 44, 45;<sup>27</sup>

---

<sup>26</sup> Incorporation of federal tax law and procedure has the express purpose to "conform to the extent practicable, certain of the existing rules of procedure under and for the administration of Utah's individual income tax law to corresponding rules of administration and procedure described by federal income tax laws, with a view to the reduction of effect, promotion of better understanding of requirements and a greater consistency between state and federal procedures and administration." U.C.A. § 59-10-102 (emphasis added). See also: *Christensen v. State Tax Commission*, 591 P.2d 445, 448 (Utah 1979) (the main purpose of incorporating federal income tax law into Utah law is to make the forms and procedures consistent).

<sup>27</sup> "The U.S. Senate Report contained the following:  
Section 1114. The provisions of Section 1318 of existing law have been amended to provide that after the enactment of the bill it shall not be a condition precedent to the maintenance of a suit to recover taxes, sums or penalties paid, that such amounts shall have been paid under protest or duress. The fact protest was made has little bearing on the question whether the tax was properly or erroneously assessed. The making of such a protest becomes a formality so far as well advised taxpayers are concerned and the requirement of it may operate to deny the just claim of a taxpayer

*Id.* at 378.

Commenting on how the new law repealing the protest requirement corrected what the court felt to be a serious injustice, the Court said:

A high-minded Government renounced an advantage that was felt to be ignoble, and set up a new standard of equity and conscience. There was no thought to discriminate between payments made and those to come. A fine sense of honor had brought the statute into being. We are to read it in a kindred spirit.

*Id.* at 379.

The Arizona Supreme Court similarly rejects a rule requiring a protest for the recovery of tax refunds.

We know of no good purpose served by such a rule. It is argued that the "under protest" requirement puts the taxing authority on notice that it might not be able to keep the tax, and therefore, it could hold the tax and not spend it until the matter is ultimately determined. But in this case, the state has conceded that this abstract reason for the rule does not apply. The state has not relied on these tax payments to its detriment.

Moreover, the rule would promote a senseless practice. All taxpayers would be advised to pay all taxes "under protest" just to cover themselves. It is not likely that the state or any other taxing entity would hold all such taxes in abeyance pending future resolution.

*Pittsburgh & Midway Coal v. Dept. of Rev.*, 776 P.2d 1061, 1063 (Ariz. 1989).

The protest rule especially makes no sense in the payment of income taxes. Because almost all taxes are collected by withholding, the employee probably never knows when the tax is

---

who was not well informed." *Moore Ice Cream* at 378.

submitted. To whom should a protest be made and how often? Who would note the protest among millions of computer-processed returns? This is not the case where a taxpayer delivers a check to a revenue agent along with a letter of protest and then waits for a phone call from the local tax authority.

Federal tax law resolved the protest issue long ago; Utah was well advised when it incorporated the federal system.

**D. REFUNDS OF INCOME TAX "OVERPAYMENTS" UNDER § 59-10-529 INCLUDE TAXES UNLAWFULLY COLLECTED.**

With its statutory incorporation of federal income tax definitions and procedures, Utah incorporates the federal definition of "overpayment".<sup>28</sup> The federal definition of the word "overpayment" was at issue in *Jones v. Liberty Glass Company*, 332 U.S. 524 (1948), when a taxpayer brought suit to recover a payment of income tax alleged to have been illegally assessed. The U.S. Supreme Court defined tax "overpayment" to include those tax payments made as a result of error in law:

In the absence of some contrary indication, we must assume that the framers of these statutory provisions intended to convey the ordinary meaning which is attached to the language they used. See *Rosenman v. United States*, 323 U.S. 658, 661, 89 L.Ed. 535, 539, 65 S.Ct. 536. Hence we read the word "overpayment" in its usual sense, as meaning any payment in excess of that which is properly due. Such an excess payment may be traced to an error in mathematics or in judgment or in interpretation of facts or law. And the error may be committed by the taxpayer or by the revenue agents. **Whatever**

---

<sup>28</sup> "Any term used in this chapter has the same meaning as when used in comparable context in the laws of the United States relating to federal income taxes unless a different meaning is clearly required." U.C.A. § 59-10-103(2).

**the reason, the payment of more than is rightfully due is what characterizes an overpayment. (emphasis added).**

*Liberty Glass* at 531.

The holding of *Liberty Glass* is codified in I.R.C. § 6401(c) (1954 Code). The Utah counterpart reads: "If there is no tax liability for a period in which an amount is paid as income tax, the amount is an overpayment." U.C.A. § 59-10-529(12).

Under any characterization, retroactive invalidation of Utah's tax on federal retirees for the years 1985-1988 is a ruling on tax liability. See: Conclusions of Law, R. 1131, 1132, pp. 13-14.

The Commission recognizes the breadth of the "overpayment" definition and treats as an overpayment any amount not properly due. An overpayment is simply a mathematical calculation between what the taxpayer paid and what he should have paid. Depo. of Commission Chairman Richard Hansen, R. 1159, pp. 21-22. "I don't know that it (the definition of overpayment) would even be an issue." *Id.* at 22. Commissioner Roger Tew agrees that the reasons for the overpayment are irrelevant.

[I]t really has been a non-issue. . . the term "overpayment" is probably generic and that's how we have approached that. If you were entitled to a refund of your ultimate tax liability, it is established to be less than the amount that you paid in, we entered the provisions for a refund decision, but. . . I am unaware of any case that we have had before us where that has ever been raised as an issue. . . in the income tax area.

Depo. of Roger Tew, Tax Commissioner, R. 1163, p. 28.

The Supreme Court of Colorado recently decided its federal retiree refund case by ordering refunds. When asked to avoid the



statutory remedy for refunds of income tax overpayments, the Court refused:

The plain reading, and only reasonable interpretation, of [the refund statutes] is that the General Assembly intended to refund any tax illegally collected under U.C.A. § 39-22-104(4)(g) to the affected taxpayers. Faced with such plain legislative intent, it is both unnecessary and outside our judicial role to look to whether refunds are good policy or whether a balancing test, such as *Chevron*, favors retroactive or prospective application of our holding that U.C.A. § 39-22-104(4)(g) was unconstitutional.

*Kuhn v. State Dept. of Revenue*, 817 P.2d 101, 110 (Colo. 1991).

**E. UNDER UTAH LAW, THE PROTEST REMEDY HAS NO APPLICATION WHERE A MORE SPECIFIC STATUTORY REMEDY EXISTS AND AN ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURE IS ESTABLISHED.**

Defendants' view of the protest statute as Plaintiffs' sole remedy is contrary to the holding and position taken by the Commission in *Pacific Intermountain Express Co. v. State Tax Commission*, 7 Utah 2d 15, 316 P.2d 549 (1957). There, the taxpayer paid allegedly unlawful sales taxes under protest and filed an action directly in district court in reliance on the protest statute, U.C.A. § 59-11-11 (1953) (now renumbered at U.C.A. § 59-1-301). The Commission moved to dismiss for failure to state a claim, raising the more specific sales tax remedy to be Plaintiffs' exclusive remedy. The trial court agreed and dismissed the protest complaint; the Utah Supreme Court upheld the dismissal.

In its opinion, the Court compared the protest and sales tax remedies.

It is to be noted that U.C.A. § 59-11-11<sup>29</sup> is of ancient origin. It has existed in our law since statehood, and sets out the historical method of contesting payment of taxes. It is general in its terms; has usually been applied to disputes over property taxes and is found in the "miscellaneous" provision of the tax code. On the other hand, § 59-15-12 to 15, upon which the Tax Commission relied, are of more recent origin, being part of the Sales Tax Act itself which was enacted in 1933; and are explicit as to the manner in which a taxpayer dissatisfied with a sales tax assessment may challenge it.

*Id.* at 551.

The Commission correctly argued that the more specific sales tax act must control over the general protest remedy.

. . . supporting this view are the basic rules pertaining to statutory construction: that in case of conflict, a later enactment is controlling over an earlier one; and that express provisions of statutes take preference over general ones.

*Id.* at 551.

Now, Defendants make the same arguments rejected in *Pacific Intermountain Express*. They claim § 59-1-301, enacted in 1898 (Df bf p. 22), and found among the "Miscellaneous Provisions" of the Tax Code, should control over the specific refund provisions of the Income Tax Act, enacted in 1973. § 59-10-529. But, Utah continues to follow the rule that new statutes, when relating to the same subject matter as existing statutes, are "deemed controlling as it

---

<sup>29</sup> Section 59-11-11 has been renumbered as § 59-1-301, but the protest statute remains virtually unchanged.

is a later expression of the Legislature," *Ellis v. Utah State Retirement Bd.*, 757 P.2d 882, 884, 885 (Utah App. 1988)<sup>30</sup>.

Defendants raise what they claim to be a contrary rule in *State v. District Court*, 102 Utah 290, 115 P.2d 913 (1941) and *Shea v. Tax Commission*, 101 Utah 209, 120 P.2d 274 (1941). Both cases involved refunds for diesel fuel taxes invalidated in *Carter v. State Tax Commission*, 98 Utah 96, 96 P.2d 727 (1939).

In the State case, the taxpayer had actually paid the fuel taxes under protest and the court was determining the appropriate statute of limitations. Even though the protest statute clearly required a six (6) month limitation, the court was badly divided. A two Justice plurality reluctantly applied the six month statute only because: 1) no other statutory remedy was provided for fuel tax refunds, and 2) the shorter statute helped resolve a "cloud on the right of the state to use taxes" paid under protest because the

---

<sup>30</sup> If the Utah Legislature had intended the protest statute to be the sole remedy for unlawfully collected income taxes, or if it had any dispute with the application of specific tax remedies over the general protest remedy, it missed a perfect opportunity when it completely revised Title 59 in 1987. Among the many changes made (see Appendix A to Title 59 showing 1987 revisions), the legislature added a remedy (59-13-202) to the Motor Fuel Tax Act, moved the protest remedy (59-11-11) to the property tax act (59-2-101 et seq; protest renumbered as 59-2-141), and made stylistic changes in the wording of the income tax refund remedy. Laws of Utah 1987, Chapters 2 through 6. The legislature missed another opportunity in 1988 when it removed the protest remedy from the Property Tax Act and placed it back in the miscellaneous tax provisions (renumbered as 59-1-301), in apparent recognition that the Property Tax Act already included a specific remedy (59-2-1313) while chapters imposing other taxes had no remedy. Laws of Utah 1988 Ch. 3 § 88.

office collecting them was required to segregate all funds paid under protest until the dispute was resolved. The concurring opinion agreed only because the statutory requirement for segregating funds favored a short statute. Two Justices dissented. *Id.* at 915 and 916.

State is distinguishable because income taxes are not fuel taxes and no segregation of income taxes is required. § 59-10-101, et seq.<sup>31</sup>

In *Shea*, the plaintiffs had not paid the fuel taxes under protest, and the Court attempted to find another remedy in the wording of the fuel tax statute authorizing the return of any fuel taxes "collected through error." The Court found the word "error" was too narrow to encompass unlawful collections. The Court held the protest statute to be the exclusive remedy for refunds of unlawful fuel taxes because no alternative remedy existed.

These cases do not conflict with the later (1957) rule of *Pacific Intermountain Express*, *supra*. *State* and *Shea* dealt with diesel fuel taxes collected under a statute allowing no other clear remedy. The Court in *Pacific Intermountain Express*, *supra*, addressed the issue of two apparent and conflicting remedies. When two remedies are apparent, the more specific later enactment applies. *Id.*

---

<sup>31</sup> Utah has not segregated Plaintiffs' income tax payments. Depo. of Roger Tew. R. 1163, p. 37.

Though the protest remedy continues to apply to taxes with no administrative remedies for refunds,<sup>32</sup> it cannot apply to defeat claims under the clear income tax refund provisions of § 59-10-529.

**F. UTAH HAS NEVER REQUIRED PAYMENT UNDER PROTEST FOR INCOME TAX REFUNDS; TO DO SO NOW WOULD BE UNFAIR.**

Defendants cannot show one example of a protest requirement being raised as a bar in Utah to an income tax refund. The issue is not raised by the Commission, which has not applied protest requirements to income tax challenges:

Q. In the income tax context, have you ever barred a refund to a taxpayer because the taxpayer failed to pay under protest?

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